
 
AMENDMENT #2: USTDA ACTIVITY NO. 2020-11029A CÔTE D’IVOIRE: ENERGY 
ACCESS AND RESILIENCY FOR 100 COMMUNITIES PROJECT  
 
POC: Anna Amaya, USTDA, 1101 Wilson Boulevard, Suite 1100, Arlington, VA 22209-3901, 
Tel: (703) 875-4357, Fax: (703) 775-4037, Email: RFP@ustda.gov.   
 
Please note that the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the FEASIBILITY STUDY for the Côte 
d’Ivoire: Energy Access and Resiliency for 100 Communities Project is amended, as follows: 
 
Questions, Answers and Clarifications:  This amendment consists of clarifying questions and 
answers submitted by potential Offerors regarding the RFP packet.  Responses to submitted 
questions are below. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Question: Can you please clarify the requirement in English / French for the hard copy of our 
technical proposals? Is it one original and four copies in English and one original and four copies 
in French for a total of ten copies? 
Answer: Yes. There should be a total of ten copies of the proposal: one original and four copies 
in English and one original and four copies in French. 
 

PROJECT SYNOPSIS 

Question: Due to the global pandemic, have the preparers reviewed proposals submitted only 
electronically or will the physical copy requirement remain in place? 
Answer: The physical copy requirement remains in place. 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 

Question: The RFP states on page 4 that “each mini-grid is expected to range in size from 50-
100 kW and may service more than one community.” Is this capacity range intended to represent 
the peak load of each mini-grid or the capacity of the solar array to be recommended for each 
mini-grid? Also, should electrical demand forecasts be restricted to this range or will system 
sizes outside of this range be acceptable if supported by field data and analysis? 
Answer: The capacity range is intended to represent the capacity of the solar array to be 
recommended for each mini-grid supported by field surveys. The electrical demand forecasts 
should not be restricted to this range; this is just an estimated range. The contractor should 
determine the recommended capacity of the solar array/system size based on the demand 
analysis that will be conducted as part of the feasibility study.  
 
Question: Can the Client/Grantee provide Latitude/Longitude coordinates for each of the 100 
communities to assist bidders in locating them?  
Answer: No; we do not have Latitude/Longitude coordinates for each of the 100 communities. It 
is expected that the selected contractor would generate this information as part of the feasibility 
study. The data available for each site at this stage includes: the Region, the Departement, the 
Sous-Prefecture, and the Commune. Respondents/bidders can find the location on Google Maps  
based on the name of the Commune or by other existing technical means.  
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Question: Has the Client determined the likely locations for the solar PV array in each of the 
100 communities, or will this be at the discretion of the contractor? 
 Answer: The contractor is responsible for recommending the location of the minigrids based on 
the available sites proposed by the local authorities and landowners in each campement. If 
possible, this site should also be located in a place that optimizes project costs.  
 
Question: Under Task 3 (page Annex I-5) the TOR states “The LCCA shall consider 
containerized mini-grid solutions, PV/battery storage, and PV/diesel hybrid systems as 
alternative design options.” Should these three alternatives be considered for each of the 100 
mini-grids, i.e. 300 total design alternatives? Should the analysis also include PV/battery/diesel 
hybrid systems (for an additional 100 alternatives)?  
Answer: A basic analysis comparing  four options (PV/battery storage, PV/diesel, 
PV/battery/diesel hybrid systems, and a containerized system) should be compared for each of 
the 100 communities so that the contractor can recommend which system is best suited for each 
site and the expected cost of that system. Please note that the feasibility study is for 100 
communities, not necessarily 100 minigrids (it might make sense that some communities would 
share a minigrid).  
 
Question: There is some ambiguity in the phrasing of this sentence in Task 3, page Annex I-6: 
“An LCCA should additionally be conducted for each Community (e.g. to cover the costs of all 
100 Communities)”. It could be each or it could be all. Please clarify.  
Answer: There should be an LCCA for each community. Once that is complete, the contractor 
should think about project implementation and how best to cluster communities etc. so that either 
there could be one large tender for all 100 communities or several tenders for groupings of 
communities based on geography or for other reasons for which grouping would make sense. In 
order to enable this kind of one large bid or smaller groupings of bids, the LCCAs for the 
communities would have to be aggregated.  
 
Question: On page Annex I-7, the TOR requires Contractor to "explore additionality in 
financing." Is this limited to carbon markets or are other additional revenue opportunities to be 
considered? Should potential carbon offset revenues be excluded from the financial models or 
included as a sensitivity analysis?  
Answer: Other additional revenue opportunities can be considered. The contractor should 
analyze all financing opportunities applicable to implementing the project, including carbon 
offset revenues and any other possible opportunities that the contractor can identify and then 
provide guidance to the Grantee on how to access them. Potential carbon revenues shall be 
included as a sensitivity analysis during the financial modelling.  
 
Question: Under Task 4 on page Annex I-8, the TOR states “Additionally, in consultation with 
the Grantee, the Contractor shall also compile the individual Preliminary ESIAs into groupings 
based on geographical location (“Grouped ESIAs Based on Geographical Location”).” Please 
clarify what is intended here? Does this represent 5 more reports (one for each region) or some 
other grouping?  
Answer: The expectation is that there will be a preliminary ESIA for each site (so that each site 
could theoretically be a stand-alone project) and that, working with the grantee, the contractor 



shall also group the sites for purposes of implementation and ease for potential financiers. In 
addition, the grouping of ESIAs can be done depending on whether the camps share a proximity 
that allows them to optimally use the same minigrid.  
 


